
A vote was taken bg show 01 hands on the United
States motion for adjournment. The motion was
adopted with 35 votes, with 18 abstentions.

The meeting rose at 5.45. p.m.

TWO HUNDRED AND TWENTY
FOURTH MEETING

Held at the Palais de Chaillot, Paris,
on Fria'ug, 3 December 1948, at 10.30 a.m.

Chairman : Mr. A. COSTA DU RELS (Bolivia).

93. Continuation of the discussion on the
progress report of the United Nations
Mediator on Palestin.e (A/548)

CONSIDERATION OF THE AUSTRALIAN DRAFr RESO
LUTlO~ (A/C.1/415) AND CONTINUATION OF
THE CONSIDERATION OF THE UNITED KINGDOM
REVISED DRAFr RESOLUTION (A/C.1/394/ Re":. 2)
AND AMENDMENTS RELATING THERETO

Mr. HOOD (Australia) introduced a draft
resolution calling for the appointment of a sub
committee to draft the terms of referenc·~ of the
proposed conciliation commission for Palestine
(A/C.1/415). In his opinion, the appointment of
such a sub-committee was now the only way to
ensure the fonnulation of terms of reference
for the conciliation commission which would
obtain the necessary support in the Committee
and the General Assembly. He pointed out
that the sub-committee would be empowered
to deal only with the question of the tenns
of reference of the commission which it would
be useless to consider in the full Committee.
While he did not wish to make any fonnal
suggestions on the composition of the sub
committee, it was his view that it should
comprise the delegations which had submitted
draft resolutions or substantial amendments.
An alternative suggestion would be to appoint
to the sub-committee delegations which best
represented the various views expressed in the
Committee. In conclusion, he emphasized that

1 the appointment of a sub-committee was the
only way in which the Committee could now
make progress.

Mr. TSARAPKIN (Union of Soviet Socialist
Republics) pointed out that a proposaI for the
establishment of a sub-committee had previously
been rejected and that the Committee had decided
to proceed with a discussion and vote on the
various draft resolutions and amendments in
the order in which they had been submitted.
In his opinion, the Committee should continue
this procedure and he thought the best tenns of
reference for the commission could be found
by drawing upon the various texts which were
belore the Committee.

Il est procédé au vote à main levée sur cette
motion des Etats-Unis d'Amérique. Par 35 voix,
avec 18 abstentions, cette motion est adoptée.

La séance est levée à 17 h. 45

DEUX-CENT-VINGT-QUATRIÈME
SÉANCE

Tenue au Palais de Chaillot, Paris,
le vendredi 3 décembre 1948, à 10 h. 30.

Président: M. A. COSTA DU RELS (Bolivie).

93. Suite de la discussion sur le rapport
intérimaire du Médiateurdes Nations
Unies pour la Palestine (A/648)

EXAMEN DU PROJET DE RÉSOLUTION DE L'Aus
TRALIE (A/C.1/415) J" SUITE DE L'EXAMEN
DU PROJET REVISÉ DE RÉSOLUTION DU ROYAUME
UNI (A/C.1/394/Rev.2) ET DES AMENDEMENTS
S'Y RAPPORTANT

M. HOOD (Australie) présente un projet de
résolution proposant la création d'une sous-commis
sion chargée d'établir le mandat de la commis
sion de conciliation envisagée pour la P J.lestine
(A /C.1 /415). A son avis, la création d'une telle
sous-commission est actudlement le seul moyen
qui puisse permettre à la Première Commission
d'arriver à établir, pour la détennination du
mandat de la commission de conciliation, un
texte susceptible d'obtenir l'appui nécessaire au
sein de la Première Commission et de l'Assemblée
générale. Il fait remarquer que la sous-commission
est chargée uniquement d'étudier les termes
du mandat de la commission de conciliation
- question qu'il serait vain d'examiner au cours des
séances plénières de la Première Commiss;on.
Bien qu'il ne tienne pas à faire de propositions
fonnelles quant à la composition de la sous
commission, M. Hood pense qu'elle de'\'Tait
comprendre les représentants des délégations qui
ont présenté des projets de résolutions, ou des
amendements importants à ces projets. Une
autre solution serait de nommer à cette sous
commission les membres de délégations qui
représentent le mieux les diverses opinions
exprimées au sein de la Première Commission.
M. Hood conclut En disant que la création d'une
sous-commission est le seul moyen qui permettrait
à la Première Commission d'aller de l'avant.

M. TSARAPKlNE (Union des Républiques socia
listes soviétiques) fait remarquer qu'une propo
sition visant à nommer une sous-commission a
déjà été rejetée, et que la Première Commission
a décidé de poursuivre la discussion et de se
prononcer sur les divers projets de résolutions
et les divers amendements, dans l'ordre chrono
logique de leur présentation. Selon lui, la Première
Commission doit s'en tenir à cette méthode, et
il pense que pour établir de la façon ln. plus satis
faisante le mandat de la commission de conci
liation, il suffit de puiser dans les divers textes
soumis à la Première Commission.



Mr. Hl'SK (Cnited States of America), stated
that in the opinion of his dell'gation the estab
lishment of a sub-committce was not necessary,
and if th\.' Cornrnittl'l' proCt.'eded with its consider
ation of and vote on the rl'mainder of the
Unitl'd King<1om draft n'solution, it couIc!
-completl' ils work on the Palestinian question
in one Of two meetings.

Beron' proceeding, however, he wished to
comment Oll several of the Committt'e's votes
at tht' previous ITlet.'ting and firstly on the deletion
of sub-paragraph 2 (c) of the l"nitl'd Kingdom
ùraft resolution to which a number of deIt>gations
had attached considerable importance.

He pointed out that under sub-paragraph 2 (a)
of the draft n'solution which had been adopted,
the Commission would assume the function
entrusted to the ~Ieiliator by Assembly resolution
186 (S-2) of 14 ~Iay 1948 to use his good offices
to promote a pcaceful solution and that this
function would cover the conciliation of the
matters which still remained unsettIed. Further
more, the direct and ineseapable implication
of paragraph 3 of the draft resolution, which had
been adoptl'd, was that the comm;ssion was
authorized to engage in negotiations for the
sett:t'IIlent of all outstanding questions. In
addition, under the Australian amendment
(.-\iC.1 /41.9) which nad been adopted, the Commis
sion had been given the function of promoting
good relations between the State of Israel, the
Arabs of Palestine, and the neighbouring Arab
States.

On purely teclmical grounds the rejection of
sub-paragraph 2 (c) ûf the Cnited Kingdom
text did not appear to create a fatal defect in
the resolution, although the Cnited States
delegation believed the inclusion of the paragraph
would clarify it. E\ "dentl)', the second haU of
the United Kingdom tt .. ~ of sub-paragraph 2 (c)
had rendered that paragraph unacceptable,
although its opponents had differed widely as
to the reasons for their opposition. \Vhile his
delegation would have preferred the original
language of sub-paragraph 2 (c), the first haU
of which had been proposed by the representâlive
of New Zealand, it believed that the Committee
desired to set forth the conciliatory functions
cf the commission in the broadest terms.

He therefore moved the addition of the follow
ing new paragraph after paragraph 3 of the
resolution. which had been adopted at the
previous meeting: "Instructs the conciliation
commission to assist the Governments and
authorities concerned to achieve a final settle
ment of aIl questions outstanding between them ft.

(A/C. l,ctl6). He added that sllch a paragrapl:
would make compictely dear what was already
in the resolution whith had been adopted and
would constitute one of the specifie instructions
referred to in sub-paragraph 2 (b).

'Ir. Husk then referred to the n'jt~ction by the
Committee of paragraph 'lof the United Kingdom

M. RUSK (Etats-Unis d'Amérique) dédarr que
sa délégation n'{'stime pas nécessaire dt, créer
une sous-commission; si la Première Commission
poursuit la discussion ('t le vr)te rlc-~~ divprses
parties du projet de résolution du Hoyaume-l;ni,
elle pourra h'rmin('r ('n une ou deux séances s(~S

travaux sur le pnlhleme pa1t'sUnien.

Avant que le débat nr s~ p()ursuiVt~, ~f. Rusk
tient à faire quelques rt'marqw's sur Il's votes
qui ont l'U lieu au cours (je la précéd(~nte séanee
de la Commission, et notamment sur II' vote
qui a entraîné la suppression de l'alinéa 2 c) du
projet de résolution du Hoyaume-Uni, auquel
plusieurs délégations attachent une importance
considérable.

M. Rusk fait n'marquer qu'en vertu de cet
alinéa, qui a été adopté, la Commission de conci
liation assumera la tâehe confiép- au :\Iédiateur
par la résolution 186 (S-2) de l'Assemblée générale
du Il mai HH8, et offrira ses bons offiees en vue
d'aboutir à une solution pacifique; cette tâche
comporter... le règlement, par voie de conciliation,
de presque toutes les questions en suspens. En
outre, la Première Commission a adopté le para
graphe 3 du projet de résolution du Hoyaume
Uni, ce qui implique nécessairemt'nt que la com
mission de conciliation est aut0risée à engager
des négociations en vue d'un règlement de toutes
les questions sur lesquelles il n'y a pas encore
eu d'accord. De plus, en vertu de l'amendement
de l'Australie (..\/C.1/419) qui a été adopté, la
commission de conciliation a été chargée de
favoriser l'établissement de bonnes relations entre
l'État d'Israël, les Arabes de Palestine et les
États arabes voisins.

Pour des raisons purer.1ent techniques, il ne
semble donc pas que la suppfl'ssion de l'alinéa 2 c)
du projet du Royaumt:-Cni constitue pour cette
résolution un défaut vraiment grave, bien que la
délégation des États-Cnis pense que l'insertion
d'un texte du même gt'nre contribuerait à la
clarté de la résolution. La délégation dt's États
Cnis a estimé que la deuxième partie de l'alinéa 2 c)
du projet du Royaume-Cni rendait cet alinéa
inacceptable, tout en constatant que les adver
saires de ce texte s'y sont opposés pour des
raisons très diverses. Bien que la délégation des
Etais-Luis préf0ïe le texte primitif de l'alinéa 2 cl,
dont la première partie a été proposée par le
représentant de la ~ouvelle-Zélande,elle constate
que la PreHlÎère COInmi:,sion désire énoncer dans
les termes les plus larges les fonctions de conci
liation à attribuer à la commission de conciliation.

En conséquence, ~1. Rusk propose d'insérer
dans le projet dt> résolution du Hoyaume-Cni,
après le paragraphe 3. qui a été adopté au cours
de la séance précédente, un nouveau paragraphe
ainsi conçu: « Donne pour instructions à la com
mission de conciliation d'aider les Gouvernf'ffit>nts
et. .les autorités intéressées à régler de façon défi
nitivl' toutes ks questions sur lesquelles ils ne se
sont pas encore mis d'accord.» (..:\/C.1/4161
Corr.l). Un tel paragraphe rendra tout à fait
clairs les textes déjà adoptés de la résolution et
constituera l'une des instructions précises dont
parle l'alinéa 2 b).

M. Husk rappelle l'nsuite que la Première
Commission li rl'jeté lt~ paragraphe ·1 du projt>t

\



draft resolution, which, in his opmlOn, had not
addt'd to the conciliation functions of the com
mission but had, however, attempted to give
the commission and the parties sorne guidance
concerning the basis of the negotiations. This
paragraph had rt'presented a mod('rate attempt
to dl'al with an ('xplosive subject and the votes
su pport ing it r('pr('s('nt('d a considerable body
of opinion in tIlt' .. centre", while the oppositi.on
consisted mainly of del('gations who agr('cd
only upon opposing it for various reason:;. In
otlll'r words, the substantiaJ opinion of the
.. c('ntn'" on this specific proposai ('I)ncerning
00(' of t Ill' main iSSIWS had becn offsl~t by the
combined wl'ight of thase who favvlred one
sidl' or tll(' otllt'r. If thert'Core the As~('mbly

was unahle to make a spC'cific suggestion on this
ell'n1l'nt of tilt' problem by Ilwans of the required
two-thirds majority, it must leave the problem
to the conciliation commission to work out with
tItl' partil's themsl"lvl's. 1lis ddl'galion wished
notloe that tlll' r('jl'ction of parag:-aph 4 did not

afTl'ct the basic framework of the resolution
whirh his ddl'gation bl'lie\'l'd could greatly
assist in bringing about a seUlement. He
belil'ved Hl(' Assl'mbly could be~t assist the
commission and the parties by ofTering responsible
advicl' on th,' rem~ining points.

Thr Cniteè Kingdom delegation had consid
erably modified ils original draft rl'solution
to the point that the Onited States delegation
had been able to support it fully in the end.
His delegation regretted that the Committee
had not nefn able to ofTer specifie aùvice to the
commission on the boundaries question, but he
did not think a modification of paragraph 4
in favaur of one side or the other would enable
it to obtain the necessary two-thirds majority
support. In the circumstances, therefore, the
mattl'r must be left for negotiation by the
conciliation commission. and he could see little
advantage in trying to reword paragraph 4.

~lr. HooD (Australia) thought that the Cnited
States representative had drawn the wrong
conclusions from a correct analvsis of the various
views expressed in tht: Con;mittee and that
the Committee still had the> possibility and the ,
responsibi1ity of giving a specifie directive to
the conciliation commission. He did not think
it was adequate to say that nothing more could
be done in this regard and to faH back on a
broad formula which would he of al) réa) heIp 1

to the commission. In the circumstances, there
fore, the reasonable course, for which there was
every precerlent, was to establish a drafting
sub-committee to make a further attempt at
drafting terms of reference for the commission.

Mr. RVSK (Cnited States of America) thought
the First Committee had acted with great moder
ation on the draft resolution before it. He
feared however question of boundaries. on which
there was a great controversy, the Committee
might find itself unable to produce a recommend-

de résolution du Royaume-Uni. Selon lui, ce
paragraphe n'ajoutait rien aux fonctions de
conciliation de la cammission, mais s'efforçait
toutefois de donner il cette commission, ainsi
qu'aux parties intéressf~s, certaines directives
concernant les bases génér!lles des négociations.
Ce paragraphe constituait une tentative raison
nahle de traiter un sujet dangereux; les voix
qu'il a recueiW"5 représentent l'opinion d'un
groupe considérable, ~jtué au "centre" de la
Première Commission, alors que l'opposition se
compose de délégations qui ne sont guère d'accord
que sur un seul point: elles s'opposent, pour
des raisons très diverses, à ce paragraphe. En
d'autres termes, l'opinion d'un groupe important
du "centre", qui s'est fait jour sur cette proposition
précise visant l'une des questions les ph' impor
tantes, a été mise en échec par les voix combinées
de ceux qui sont favorables soit à l'une des parties,
soit à l'autre. Donc, si l'Assemblée n'arrive pas
à se prononcer sur ce point du proLlème à la
majorité requise des deux tiers, elle devra laisser
à la commission de conciliation le soin de le
résoudre, de concert avec les parties intéressées.
La délégation des États-Unis tient \ faire remar
quer que le rejet du paragraphe 4 n'affecte pas
le cadre général de la résolution qui, telle qu'elle
est, peut rendre de grands services en vue d'un
règlement du problème. M. Rusk pense que la
meilleure façon dont l'Assemblée puisse aider la
commission de conciliation et les parties intéressées
est de leur donner des directives au sujet de ces
questions qui restent en suspeils.

La délégation du Royaumt>-Cni a modifié sa
proposition primitive d'une Llçnn si profonè~

que la délégation des États-Cni,.; 3 pu '~n fin de
compte lui accorder son appui. La délégatio:r
des États-Unis regrette que la Première COillITiÎs
sion ait été incapable de donner un avis précis
à la commission de conciliation sur la question
des frontières, mais l\1. Husk ne pen;,e pas qu'une
modification du paragraphe 4 au profit de l'une
quelconque des parties puisse rallier en faveur
de ce paragraphe une majorité des deux tiers.
Dans ces conditions, il faut laisser à la commÎ':ision
de conciliation le soin de négocier à ce sujet et
il ne serait guère utile de chercher à donner une
nouvelle rédaction au paragraphe 4.

::\!. Hoon (Australie) répond qu'à son avis le
représentant des États-Unis a tiré des conclusions
erronées d'une ané.dyse pourtant correcte des
diverses vues exprimées au sein de la Commission,
et que celle-ci conserve toujours la faculté et la
responsabilité de donner des directives précises à
la commission de conciliation. Il n'est pas ju~te

de dire que tous les efforts ont été épuisés et qu'il
faut en revenir à une formule très générale qui
d'ailleurs ne serait d'aucun secours à la commission
de conciliation. Dans les circonstances présentes, la
seule solution raisonnahlt, qui peut se réclamer de
nombreux precédents, serait de nommer un comité
de rédaction chargé d'essayer une fois de plus de
rédiger le mandat de la Commissifln.

M. RVSK (États-unis d'Amérique) estime que
la Première Commission a fait preuve d'une
grande modération à propos de ce projet de réso
lution; toutefois, la question des frontières a
soulevé de vives controverses et il ne pense pas
que la Commission soit à même de trouver une.'



ation which would command a two-thirds
majority in the Assembly. His delegation there
fore thought it proper to leave this question to
the process of conciliation in the commission
and to proceed with the consideration of the
other questions.

Mr. GARcIA GRA."lADOS (Guatemala) regretted
that on this occasion he could not agree with
the Australian representative and thought a
sub-committee would he useless. The Assembly
could not force either party to accept a solution
it opposed, and could proceed only by means
of eonciliation. He would, therefore, vote against
the Australian proposaI.

A vote was taken by show 0/ hands. The
Australian dralt resolution (A jC.1j4.15) was rejected
by 39 votes to 7, with 4 abstentions.

Mr. ROnRIGUEZ FABREGAT (Uruguay) thought
that the new United States aml'nrlment represented
a step towards a solution of the present situation
and c1arified the discussion. The tendencies
pointed out by the United States representative
had bl'l'n l'vident from the start of the gen'~ral

discussion and had led to the negative vote on
paragraph 2 (c) and paragraph 4: of the United
Kingdom draft resolution which were similar
in content. The United States amendment,
which \Vas really a definition of a conciliation
commission, eliminatl'd the objrction that the
tenns of rderencr of the commission were too
righl.

Any decision of the Assemhly on this question
must obtain a two-thirds majority and it was
difTIeult for the Assembly ta consider such
qUl'stions as the distribution or exchange of
populations from such a great distance. The
conciliation commission, howevt.'r, coulet. take up
these qlH'stions on the spot in Palestin~, sub
mitting : s suggestions to the parties concerned,
and finally reporting to thl' Gl'neral Assembly.
His dl'legation considered that the United States
amenJml'nt defined the tenus of refercnce of
tlw conciliation commission adequately and
would thrrefore vote in favour of it.

:Mr. ZULOAGA (Venezuela) said that his delc
gation abo favoured the llrw United States
amenrlment but thought it contradicted the
tenns of paragraph 5. His delegation would accept
the United States amenrlmf'nt if paragraph 5
wer~' rejected, and he askerl whether the United
States rlelegation was prepared to vote against
paragraph 5 or "ould subrnil its amendment
afœr paragraph 5 was rejected.

:\Ir. PEAP.SOX (Canada) thought the new
United States amendment oIT~reù a good way
out of the present difficullies, and said his
dell-gation woulel support it, subject to a slight
drafting change which he hop~d tIle United
States delcgation would accept. In hh opinion
the present wording was too negative and gave
the impression that the conciliation commission
must wait for its assistance to br requested.
He suggested the insertion of the words .. to
take strps " after the word •. commission " and
explaincd that this wording would give the

formule qui rallierait une majorité des deux tiers
à l'Assemblée. C'est pourquoi sa délégation juge
préférable de confier le problème aux soins de la
commission de conciliation ct de passer aux autres
questions.

M. GARciA GRA~'lADOS (Guatemala) regrette de
ne pouvoir accepter les vlles du représentant de
l'Australie, et estime inutile la création d'un
comité de rédaction. L'Assemblée ne· peut
contraindre aucune des parties à accepter une
solution contre son gré; la solution ne peut être
trouvée que dans un règlement à l'amiable. C'est
pourquoi il votera contre la proposition de
l'Australir.

Il est procédé au voie à main levée. Par 39 voix
contre 7, avec 4 abstentions, le projet de résolution
( A IG. 1 1415) de l'A.ustralil t;si rejeté.

M. RODRiGUEZ FABREGAT (Uruguny) l'stime que
le nouvel aml'ndemrnt des États-Unis représ!!nte
un pas en avant vers la solution des difficultés
actuelles t't qu'il cbrifie la question. Les tendances
signalée" par le représentant des États-Unis sont
apparurs nptteml'nt dès le début de la discussion
générale; l'ill's ont conduit à des votes négatifs sur
l'alinéa c) du p:1r~graphe2 et sur le paragraphe 4,
qui sont d'un cantenu analogue. L'amendement
des États-Unis, qui oITre en réalité la définition
d'une commission de conciliation, élimine
l'obj('ctio~l qui a trait au caractère trop rigide du
mandat de Cl'Ul' commission.

Toute décision de l'Assemblée sur ce point doit
obh'nir UIle majorité des deux tiers l'l il cst
difficile pour l'Assemblée générale d'étlldil..'r, à
une :.;i grande di"'tance, des problèml's tels que
crux de la répartition ou de l'échange des popu
lathns. L.1. commission de conciliation, elle,
pourrait examiner ces questions sur les lieux
mèmcs en Pakstine, puis soumettre S()S propo
si" - ns aux p~rties intéressées, pt finall'ment
envoYI'r son rapnort à l'Assemblée générale. Sa
délégation estime que l'amrndement dl's Éblts
Unis définit d'une façon sllfll.;amml'nt claire le
mamh1t de la commission de conciliation; c'est
pourquoi elle votC'ra en sa fa\ èur.

:\1. ZLTLOAGA (Venezuela) dit que sa délégation
rst ég:tlrnll'nt favorablè au nouvel am('IHil'ment
des Étals-Unis; toutefois, elle estime qu'il se
trouve pn contradiction avec les trrmes du para
graphe 5. Si celui-ci est rejeté, sa délégation
acceptera l'amendempnt des États-Unis, l't il
deJll;:lnrlc si 1'1 délégation des l~tats-Unis est
disposée à voh'r contre le paragraphe 5 ou à
présenter son amendemer!.t après que le para
graphe 5 aura été rejeté.

:\1. PEAHSO~ (Callada) estime i.llle le nouvel
amendement ù-.'s États-Unis fourml une l'XCel
!L'nte soluti0n aux difficultés présl'Iltes; sa
délégatilHl votera en sa faveur, sous réserve
(l'une légèn.' modification de rédaction qu'il
l'spèl L' voir acc·.'ptée par la délégation d•.'s États
Unis. La rédaction présente a un caractère trop
négatif et donne l'impression que la commission
de conciliation doit attendre qu'on lui dl'mande
son aidt~. Il propose donc l'insertion des mots
« pour prendre des mesures» après le mot
« commission»; la commission pourra ainsi

886



commISSIOn the right to take the initiative,
aItll0ugh its action must of course remain within
the limits of conciliation.

Mr. RUSK (United ~' ..~~s of America) said
that he gladly accepted the suggestion of the
representative of Canada provided that its
maning was clear to the First Committee.
His delegation considered that any conciliation
commission must take considerable initiative
but should not undertake any executive functions.

Mr. TSARAPKIN (Union of Soviet Socialist
Republics) asked the United States rep!'~sentative

on what basis the settlement would be reached
and who wouk' determine that basis. 'Vould
the seUlement be by mutual agreement or would
a specifie solution be imposed by the conciliation
Commission?

Mr. RUSK (United States of _\merica) replied
that the intention of the United States amend
ment was that 1.. ' solution would be imposed
on the parties, The basis for conciliation must
be found in the views of the parties themselves
and the possibilities of reaching agreement
between the parties. lt was for the concilial.on
commission to ascertain exactly where the points
of agreement lay.

r1 vote was taken by show of hands on the United
States amendment (AjC.1j416). lt was adopted by
42 votes to 2, with 12 abstentions.

Mr. GARcÎA GRANADOS (Guatemala) said that
in view of the fact that paragraph 5 of the United
Kingdom draft resolution would probably not
be approved, there was no need for an addition
and he therefore asked that his amendment
(AjC.lj39SjHev.2) in that r_'spect be withdrawn.

The CHAIRMAN read the text of paragraph 5
of the United Ki>:gdom draft _'''':':l!ùtion.

Mr. ~SARAPKIN (Union of Soviet Socialist
Republics) drew the Committee's attention to
the fact that this paragraph endorsed para,
graph 4 (c) of the Mediator's conclusions, the
adoption of which would be liable to compromise
the General Assembly. It nullifled the Assembly's
decision of 19t7 to establish an independent
Arab Sta~(' in Palestine, and it proposed to give
this territory to Transjordan, which \Vas a
foreign State. Paragraph 5 contained a far
reaching political proposaI which attempted
to bolster the neighbouring State of Transjor
dan at the expense of both the Arab and Jewish
populations of Palestine. Since paragraph 4
of the Unitvd Kingdom draft rcsolution, which
suggc~t('d that the territorial quc~tions be solved
on the basis of the Mediator's progress report,
had bcC'n rejecft::'d, it was 1- gical that paragraph 5
should also be rcjected and the USSR delegation
would vote against il.

Mr. CASTRO (El Salvador) said that the position
of his delcgation, as had been stated earlier in
the discussion, was to favour any proposaI
which would provide a basis for real conciliation.
The United States amendment which had just

prendre l'initiative, tout en s'en tenant, bien
entendu, à son rôle qui est un rôle de conciliation.

M. RUSK (États-Unis d'Amérique) acceptera
volontiers la proposition du représentant du
Canada, à condition que la Première Commission
en ait bien saisi la portée. Sa délégation estime
qu'une commission de conciliation ne doit pas
hésiter à prendre des initiatives, mais qu'elle ne
saurait assumer des fonctions d'exéciuton.

M. TSAR..\PKINE (Union des Républiques socia
listes soviétiques) demande au représentant des
États-Unis quels seraient les principes dont on
s'inspirerait pour aboutir à un règlement, et qui
définirait ces principes. S'agira-t-il d'un règlement
à l'amiable ou bien la commission de conciliation
impos~ra-t-ene une solution précise?

M. RUSK (États-Unis d'Amérique) répond que
l'intention de l'amendement des États-Unis n'est
pas d'imposer une solution à l'une quelconque des
parties. C'est en tenant compte dèS vues qu'expri
meront les parties intéressées qu'il faudra chercher
une base de conciliation susceptible d'aboutir à
un règlement. Il appartient à la commission de
conciliation d'examiner soigneusement la situation
et les possibilités d'accord qu'elle offre.

Il est procédé au vote à main levée sur l'amen
dement des États-Unis (A.jC.1/416). Par 42 voix
contre 2, avec 12 abstentions, l'amendement est
adopté.

M. GARciA GRANADOS (Guatemala) estime que le
paragraphe 5 du projet de résolution du Royaume
Uni n'a guère de chances d'être approuvé et
que par conséquent l'additJ du Guatemala
(A/C.l j39SjRev.2) n'a plus de raison d'être;
aussi rctire-t-îl cet additif.

Le PRÉSlDE~Tdonne ledure du texte du para
gralJhe 5 à.ü proj~t dE, résolutiùil du Royaume
Unis.

Pour M. TSARAPKINE (Unir)ll des Républiques
socialistes soviétiques) ce paragraphe sanctionne
l'alinéa 4 c) des conclusions du :\Iédiateur,
dont l'adoption serait susceptible de compromettre
le crédit de l'Assemhlée générale. En outre, ce
paragraphe réduit à néant la décision prise par
l'Assemblée en novembre 1947, de créer en
Palestine un État arabe indépendant, et propose
de donner cc territoire à la Transjordanie, État
étranger. Le paragraphe 5 révèle donc d~s visées
politiques d'une grande portée, tendant à agrandir
l'État de Trnn~jordanie, voisin de la Palestine,
aux dépens de la population arabe aussi bien que
de la population juive de ce dernier pays. Puisque
le paragrap~le 4 du projet de résolution du
Royaume-Uni, qui prvposait de résoudre les
questions territoriales en se fondant sur le rapport
intérimaire du l\lédiateur, a été rejeté, il est
logique qu'il en aille de même du paragraphe 5 ; la
délégation de l'URSS votda, par conséquent,
contre ce dernier.

:M. CASTRO (Salvador) rappelle encore une fois
que la politique de sa délégation est d'appuyer
toute proposition qui offrirait une possibilité réelle
de conciliation. L'amendement des États-Unis,
qpj vient d'être adopté, fait de la commission



bl'en ndoptt'd madl' thl' l'OmnllSSlOn n mediation
body with power to aet on its own initiative
wit hout lwing bnund by any l'arlil'r decisions.
His dl'kgat iOIl had abstainl'd from vnting on aIl
of tlll' paragraphs wh::'h phH'l'd limitations
on t hl' commission hy rl'fl'rring to i hl' Assl'mhly's
n'solut ion of H1I7 or tlH' l\fl'diator\; progress
report. all(l had suppnrh'd the Unitl'd States
anwndnll'nt Iwc:H1sl' il gave tht' commission
tlH' widt'st possibil' powt'rs. lIis dt'h'gatinn
would also voh' for any h'xt whirh gavt' a(it'quatt'
protl'clion tn tht' inh'fl'sts of Christianity in
Pail'st ilH' :Hui also to tht' inh'rl'sts of the Mosil'm
:.md .Jt'wish fait hs.

MI'. IkELEY (lTnih'tl h:ingdorn) did not agfl't'
with tilt' l'SSH rl'IH'l'Sl'ntatiYl"s contt'ntion th:lt
paragraph ,-lof tlH' l Tnill'd Kingdom draft
l'l'sol Il 1ion was so r!osl'ly l'onnl'ch't! wi 1h t tlt'
pn'cl'ding paragraph t hat it s rt'jl'et ion shoul(l
logical.ly follow upon tlH' n'jt'ction of tlH' lait l'r.
lit' l'xplailll'd t hat paragraph fl (It'alt wit h t:ll'
~t('PS 10 Ill' takl'n for thl' disposai of the tl'rl'jtory
which the :\lIYl'mtH'r l'l'solution assignl'd to an
Arah St:lft" whl'rt'as paragraph ,1 dl'alt mainly
wit h tilt' posit ion of tlw .h'ws in Palt-st ilH'.
MI'. Bl'l'll'Y also pointl'd out t ha t paragraph 1 (r)
of tIlt' spl'('ilic conr!usions in tlll' l'h'diator's
rt'port to which thl' United Kingllom tl'xt rdl'rrt'd
was Ilot a st raight forward rl'l'omnll'Ildat ion for
thl' ineiusion of thl' Arab arl'a within the tl'ITitory
of Transjordan. Il Illt'fl'Iy ... taft'd that thl'rt' Wl'n'
rompl'lling rt'asons for surh a mt'rgt'r. suhjt'ct
to sueh front il'r rl'rt îlications in rl'slH'ct of t ht'
otltl'r Arah States as might Ill' dl'l'llH'd dl'sirahh'.
'l'hl' Unitl'd Kingdom (Il'Il'gation favourl't! an
l'n\lorsl'ml'nt of t hat conclusion l)t'causl' it dit! not
hl'Iit'vt' thai an Arah Statt' in P:t1l'StitH', <'rl'all'd in
:h·cordan'.'l' wit h i IH' :";o\,('TlIIll'I rt'sOlllliOJI, would
Ill' t'conomÎrally vi:lhlt,. ~Ir. lkdt'Y fOllud it
difiieult to unt1t'r:,tand why t tH' CSSH rt'pn'srn
tatin' plal'l'd such insistl'nl'l' on the creation of
an indqh'lHll'nt Arah Statt' wllt'n aIl reliahll'
obsl'rYl'rs in Pah'stine agn'l'd that it was not a
prad ieal proposaI.

~Ir. L'\~GF. (Poland) had t wo objections to the
l·nitt'd Kingdom proposaI. First, Ill' ('ould not
aC(,l'pt tht' :\1t't1iator's conr1usion ft'garding thl'
disposaI of tlH' Arab tl'fritory IH'causl' it JlH'ant
that t hl' dt'cÎsion would be left primarily to the
GOYl'rnmt'nts of the ndghhouring Arab States.
Trut', the ~Il'diator's l't'port said that thl' inha
bitants of the Arab area would bl' consu1tt'd,
but it was not realistic to imagine that thl'rt'
('ould he a frre and valid ronsuitation so long
as the armies of the neighbouring States ft'mained
in o('cupation. Sc('ondly, the Polish delcgation
could not agrce that the Assembly had any
right to rl'commend that the territory be anlll'xed
to another State. The Arab inhabitants werc
the only people who could decide the fate of
their land. Before any decision could be taken,
aIl non-Palestinian troops should be wjthdrawn
from the area, and an independl'nt Government
created. \"hen that had bc<:n done, the Pales-

de conciliation un orgaIll' de médiation disposant
d'initiative ('t qui n'l'st lié par aucune décision
antérieure. La d{>légation du Salvador S'l'st
abstenue de voh'r sur tous les paragraphes qui
se rédamail'nt, ~,c:t de la résolution adoptée par
l'Assl'mhlée l'n HH7, soit du Happort intérimaire
du Médiateur, et qui, pnr conséquent, rl'strl'Î
gnait'Ilt h's pouvoirs de la commission de
conciliation: par contre, elle a appuyé l'aml'n
dl'mt'nt dl's (.:tats-Unis, car il donnait à la com·
mission dl' conciliation h's pouvoirs h's plus
t'ft'ndlls. Elle votera égalt'JI1I'nt polir tout tl'xte
qui assun'rait une protection appropriée aux
intt"rêls dl' la dlr~ti('nté T'n Palestirlt', dl' même
qu'aux intén\ts dl' la religion musulmane {'t dt' la
rl'ligion juivl'.

1'1. BtmLEY (Hoyaullw-Uni) n't'st pas dl' l'avis
du rt'prt."sl'ntant dl' l'UHSS sl'Ion 1t'qllt'1 Il' para
grapht' 5 du projd dt' résolution du HOY:lllTIll'
Pni t'st si intimt'mt'nt Iii' au paragraptH' prt"cl'dl'nt
qut' It' rt'jd dt' l'un doit logiqul'IIH'nt ('nt raîlll'r
h' n'jl'f dl' l'aut n'. Lp paragraplw fl, ('n l'IId,
trailt' dt's JlWSUf('S Ù pft'ndn' pOlir dispospr dll
tnritoir, qut' la n'solution dl' lIovt'rnhn' attrihut'
ù un ]::tal aral)(', tandis qlll' il' paragraplw 4
traitt' sllrtout dt' la situation dt's .Juifs t'n l'all'stirH'.
J) 'a u t ft' parI, 1'1. 1kl'll'Y ohSl'rw qlH' l'alinl'a
'. c) dt'S conclusions pr{>l'Îst's du rapport du
:\lédiatl'ul'. dont fait état It' projt't dl' n"'so
lution du HoyaUllH'-Uni, Hl' rt'('ommant1t' pas
t'xprt'ssénwnt dt' rattal'ht'r la zoup araht' dt'
Pa!t'stint' au ft'rritoirt' dl' la Transjordnnil'. Il Sl'
hOfllt' Ù dt'C'lart'l' qUl' dt'" raisons impëril'ust's
militent t'n faveur d'lin tt'I rattarh('llH'nt, sous
réSI'rVI' dt's ft,(,titicat iOlls dl' frontit\n's qui
pourrait'nt sl'mhlt,1' désirablt,s, rectifications
inh'n'ssant Il's autrt's (.:tats aralll's. Si la (\t'lé
gat ion du Hoyauml'-Uni tt'nd Ù faift' sil'nnt' cd tt'
('nnl'h!~·.ioJl, c\,,·,t qu' lit' nl' ('foit pas qu'ml (.:t:lt
arahl" qui St' l'n'l'rait t'n Pah-stinl' confornH'ml'nt
ù la ft'soltlt iOIl dl' Jlo\'t'mhn" soit l'conomiqlh'Tl1l'nt
viahlt,. L'oratt'ur a du mal ù compft'ndn' pourquoi
Il' l'l' prl'sl'nta nt dl' l' (j HSS insistt' tt'llt'mt'nt pOlir

qu'ou cn'l' un (.:tat ar:l\H' indépc·ndalli. nlors qllt'
tous \cs ohsl'rvatt'UfS "'l'rieux qui Sl' trouvt'nt l'Il

l'alt'st ilh' ('onvit'nrH'nt qlH' ('ettl' proposition l'si
pra tiq Ul'IlH' ut irr{>alis:~ bll'.

1'1. LA~GE (Polognt') a deux ohjl'ctioJls a
0PP(hl'f à la proposition du Hoyamlle-Uni. S'il
nl' Pl'ut accl'ptl'r la conclusian du :\Iédiatl'ur qllallt
à la manière dont il y a lieu dl' dispost'r du terri
toire arabe, c'est, premièrement, parce qut' la
qUl'stion sel'~lÎt laissl'l', avant tout, à la diseri'ti'm
dl's Gouvernements des r~tats arabes voisins. Ll'
rapport du Médiateur dit bien qlH' les habitants
dl' la zone arahl' sl'rail'nt. consultt."s: mais c'est
n'avoir aucun Sl'ns des réalités (fut' dl' s'imaginer
qu'une consultation puisse avoir lieu lii>n'llll'nt
et d'une façon sincère, tant que les armées des
r~tats voisins occuperont ce pays. En second Iku.
la délégation polonaise ne reconnaît pas à
l'Assemb:,Se Il' droit dl' recommander que Cl'
tl'rritoire soit annexé à un autre f~tat, C'est à la
population arabe, et à elle sl'ule, qu'il appartient
de décider du sort de son territoire, Avant
qu'aucune décision ne puisse être prise, il faut
retirer de cette zone toutes les troupes non pales-

888



tinian Arabs would be able to take a free and
uninflucnced decision as to their future political
status.

Sir ZAFHULLAH Khan (Pakistan) asked the
United Kingdom repn'sl'ntativc to what extent
rransjordan was cconomically viable. If it
wcre not, then it would be scarcrly logical to
imagine that the addition of the Arab area of
Palestine would make a single viable Siate,
since the United Kingdom repTl'sentative had
already admitled that the latter was not viable.
He inquired how two bankrupts could become
solvl'nt.

Mr. BEELEY (United Kingdom) recalled that
lU' had frequl'ntly n'jl'cted the contention that
Transjordan was not a viahle State. 1h' consid
l'n'd that the incorporation of Aral> Palestine
would not Il(' an unmixl'd benefit to Transjordan.
For SOllll' t iml' to come it could bL' expected
to repn'sl'nt an economic liability.

Mr. AMMou:-,; (Ll'I)anon) asser' rd that it \Vas
for thl' Arabs of Palestine to determine their
politieal futuTl' and tlw l7nitrd Nations could not
<h'ny them the right of self-determination which
was at UH' vl'ry basis of intL'rnational law.
Many of the StatL's fl'presented on the Committer
hall won their indqwndellce by asserting that
right and then' could bl.' no justiee in denying
it to otl1l'rs. Il was not sufficient that the
inhabitants of tlH' area allocated to the Arabs by
the Novembrr resolution should be allowed
ln dl'lermine their future. The sanw right
should be ac~ordl'd to the sevI.: 11 or eight hundred
tI'\lus'pl P~111'''itinian Arabs 'Nno had !wen ùdven
into exile through no fauIt of thl'ir own. The
üniLL'd Nations should hold a plebiscite for the
whole of Pakstine in which both Arabs and
Jews would participate. Further, as was the
practicl' in eVl'ry plebiscite IH'ld elsewhere,
there should he a cardul enumeration of those
who wen' l'nt ltled to take part. for the Jewish
population hall increased greatly within recent
)'l'ars. \Vhile Lebanon would be the last country
to deny the right of rpfugp{'s to flnd new homes,
therl' was a limit to tlH' amonnt of immigration
which was permissiblp. 1\Ir. Ammoun thought
it woulLl be particularly unjust to deny the
right of self-determination to Arabs in the
.Jewish an'as and to those communities, such
as thl' cities of .latTa and Nazareth, whose entire
population was composed of Arabs and non
Jews.

Sir ZAFHULLAH Khan (Pakistan) welcomed
the assurance given by the United Kingdom
representative that Transjordan was a viable
State. But he still feared that the latter's
economic ressources might be unduly strained
or l'ven dislocated by the lllcorporation of the
non-viable Arab an'as of h~lestilll'. He still
awaited sorne assurance from the United Kingdom
representativc that the merger would not place
an unbearable economic burder on Transjordan,
and make it non-viable.

tiniennes et établir un Gouvernement indépendant.
Cela fait, les Arabes de Palestine pourront prendre,
en toute indépendance, une décision quant à leur
statut politique futur.

Sir ZAFRULLAH Khan (Pakistan) demande au
représentant du Hoyaume-Uni de préciser dans
quelle mesure la Transjordanie est économi
quement viablp. Si elle ne l'est pas, il ne serait
guère permis d'imaginer qu'après sa fm,ion ave~

]a zone arabe de Palestine, l'Ét::tt unique qu'on
obtiendrait ainsi puisse être viable, puisque le
représentant du Hoyaume-Uni a déjà admis que
la zone aralw de Palestine ne l'était pas. L'orah'ur
ne pense pas que rIeux hommes ayant fait faillite
pnis~~ent dt'venir solvahles en S'~"isociant.

M. BEELEY (Hoyaume-üni) rappelle qu'il s'est
fréquemml'l1t devé contre l'affirmation selon
laquelle la Transjordanie n'est pas nn (~tat viable.
A son avis, Il' rattachemC'nt de la zone arabe de
PalestiIH' à la Transjordanie Ill' serait pas un pur
hénéflcl' pour cl'ttL.' dernière. Du point de vue
économique, on peut s'attendre, au contraire, à
cc que la zone arabe de Palestine soit pendant
qndque temps P. la charge de la Transjordanie.

::\1. A!\DIOLT:-'; (Liban) soutient que c'est aux
Aral}l's de Pah'stine qu'il appartient de décider
dl' leur aVl'nir politique et que l'Organisation
des ~ati()ns Unies ne peut leur refuser Il' droit de
disposer d'eux-mêmes, droit qui est le fondement
mênll' de la loi internationale. C'est en affirmant
ce droit que heaucoup d'États représentés à la
Première Commission ont acquis leur indépen
dancl.', et il serait injuste dt' contester ce droit
à d'autres. Il ne suffit pas d'autoriser les habitants
de la zone que la résolution de novembre a
attribuée aux Arabes à décidf" de leur avenir. Il
taut accorder le même droit aux sept ou huit
cent mille \.rdhes de Palestine qUI ont dû prendre
le chemin de l'exil sans qu'il y l'dt de leur faute.
L'Organisation des ~ations Unies devrait procéder,
pour l'ensemble de la PalestiIll', à un plébiscite
auqUl'1 participerail'nt les Arabes l't les Juifs.
En outn', comme dans tous les plébiscites qui O.lt
cu lieu ailleurs, il faudrait recenser soigneusement
tous ceux qui seront admis à y prendre part, car
la population juive a beaucoup augmenté depuis
qul.'1ques années. Le Lihan serait bien le dernier
pays à contester aux réfugiés le droit de trouver
dl' nouveaux foyers, mais il y a tout de même une
limite à observer quant au nombre d'immigrés
qu'il y a lieu d'a<inwttTl'. Il serait particulièrement
injuste dl' refuser le droit de disposer d'eux-mêmes
aux Arabes des zones juives et aux communautés,
telles que h's villes de .latTa et de Nazareth, dont
la population ','st entièrement composée d'Arabes
ct de non-Juifs.

S'adressant au rc-présentant dli Hoyaume-Cni,
Sir ZAFRULLAH Khnn (Pakistan) dit qu'il est
heureux d'apprendre que 13 Transjordanie est un
État viable. Mais il n'en pcrsish' pas moins à
craindre que ses ressources économiqul's ne soient
très entamées, ou même épuisées, si on lui rattache
les ZOlll'S arabes non viables de Pall.'stine. Il attend
toujours que le représentant du Hoyaume-Uni
lui assure que la fusion n'imposerait pas à la
Transjordanil' un fardeau économique excessif, qui
l'empêcherait de survivre.

889



FAWZI Bey (Egypt) said he was strengthened
in his opposition to any partition of Palestine
by the faet that many of the proponents of
partition now admitted the impossibility of
setting up two viable indepemtent States in
Palestine. lt W:lS regrettable that paragraph 5
of the United Kingdom draft resolution, by
di. ecting the conciliation commission to consult
only with the inhabitants of the Arab areas and
not with the population of Palestine as a whole,
presentcd the Palestinian Arabs with no alter
native but partition, and denied them the right
of self-detcrmination which was a basic principle
of the Charter. It was a flagrant violation of
the Charter and was consistent with the Assembly's
earlier rejection of fIe Arab Tl'qUl'st that the
matter br referred to the International Court of
Justice for an advisory opinion.

6-·---·r.. Mr. BJ::ELEY (United Kingdom), replying to
the representative of Pakistan, admiUed that the
Arab area of Palestine would probably constitute
an economic burden on Transjordan, at !f'ast
during the initial period. But there was no
reason to suppose that the merger would make it
impossibll' for Transjordan to remain economically
indt'pendl'nt. Every State containt'd regions
which, if they were separate, would be nrJO
viable. If the merger were carried out, the
population of Arab Palestine would probably,
for a short period, sufTer sorne economic res
trictions wh;rh would be shared by tlH' people
of Transjordan. If, on the other hand. the
Assembly decided to create a new independent
Arab St:1tt' in Palestine, it would be condemning
the inhabitants of Arab Palestine to the carl' of
a govrrnment vt'ry nearly bankrupt al the
outset and which ."( ~lld l l'l'". inc:Jpablp of
survivaI.

The CHAIRMAS put to tht' vote paragraph 5
of the United Kingdom draft resolution.

A vote was taken by roll-cail, as follows :
Paraguay, having been drawn by lot by the

Chairman, was called upon to vote {irst.
In fm}our: Sweden, Union of South Africa,

United Kingdom, L'nitpd States, BeIgium, Brazil,
Canada, China, Colombia, Denmark, Dominican
Republic, Francr, Iceland, Luxembourg, Nether
lar.ds, ~ew Zealand, Nicaragua, Norway.

.1gainst: Poland, Samli Arabia, Syria, Turkey,
Ckrainian Soviet Sacialist RepubIic, Union of
Soviet Socialist Republics, Uruguay, Venezuela,
Yemen, Yugoslavia, Afghanistan, Australia,
Burma, Byelorussian Soviet Socialist Republic,
Costa Rica. Cuba, CZl'choslovakia, Egypt, El
Salvador, Ethiopia, Guatemala, India, Iran,
Iraq, Lebanon, Pakistan.

:.:-' .4 bstaining: Paraguay, Peru, Siam, Bolivia,
ChHe, Ecuador, Green', Haiti, Honduras, Liberia,
Mexico, Panama.

Para,qraph .5 of the United Kingdom drall
resolution was rcjected by 26 votes to 18, with
12 abstentions.

The CHAIRMAN read the text of paragraph 6
of the United Kingdom draft resolution.

FAWZI (Bey Égypte) est d'autant plus opposé
à tout partage de la Palestine que beaucoup des
partisans du partage reconnaissent maintenant
qu'il est impossible d'établir l'n Palestine dl'ux
États indépendants viables. II est regrettahle
que le paragraphe. 5 du projet de résolution du
Royaume-Uni, en donnant pour directives à la
commission de conciliation de consulter uni
quement les habitants des zones arabes ct non
l'ensemble de la population de la Palestine,
n'ofTre aux Arabes de Palestine d'a utre possibi
lité que le partage et leur refuse le droit de disposer
d'eux-mèmes, droit qui est un dt'S principes
fondamentaux de la Charte. C't'st là une violation
flagrante de la Charte, tout autant que le ft'jet
par l'Assemhlél' de la requt"te aralH' ll'ndant a
saisir de cette question la Cour intern3liollule de
Justice, pour cn obit'nir un avis consultatif.

Héponclant au représentant du Pakistan
~1. UEELEY (l{oyaume-üni) rt~t'onnaît que la zonl'
arabe de Palestine constituerait prolJahll'Jlll'nt
pour la Transjordanie un fardeau du point dt' \ lie
économique, tout au moins dans k .. prl'miers
temps. :\lais il n'y a aueunp raison dl' supposer
Ql1l' el'tte annexion l'mpèe1ll'rait la Tran~jllf(bnil'

de fl'sh'r économiquement indépendante. Il exisle
dans tous les pays ct'rtaines régions qui, i..;uiément,
ne seraient pas viahles. En ras dl' rattachement,
il est probable qr.e la population dt~ la zone arabe
de Palestine. de même que la population de la
Transjordanie, suhira pt'ndan1 une eourtp pl'rinde,
eertaines Tl'strirtions économiques. Si. d'autre
part, l'Assemblée déride de créer un I:~tat arabe
indépendant en Palestine, elIt' contilT:t ses
hahitants à un Gouvernement qui, dès le début,
sera proche de la f~lilIit(' et qui ni..' poun:\ pas
SUl vivre.

LI' PRÉSIDE:\-r ml't aux voix le pRragraphe 5
du projet de résolution du Royaunlt.'-Cni.

Le scrutin a lieu par appel nominal. L'appel
commence par le Paraguay, dont le nom ('st tiré
au sort par le Président.

Volent pour: SUl-de, Union Sud-Afrir:ürH',
Rqyaumt'-üni, (~tats-Unis d'AmériquI', B,'lgiqlH',
Brésil, C:: ':la, Chinr, Colomhip, DaTll'mnrk,
lh;publiqlll~ 1)ominicailH', FrancI'. 1..,landt~,

Luxt'mbourg, P~lys-Bas. ~lIuvt'Ile-Zé]aTlrIt~, :"li
caragna. :'\orvl'g(' .

Votent fontr(': Polow:r, Arahie saoudik. Syrie,
Turquie. Hl'publique socialhte soviélique
d' Ckraine, Union des Républiques socialish's
soviétiques, L'rugua)', Vl'IH'zuda, Yémpn,
Yougoslavie, Afghanistan, :\u:-.tralk. Uirm:1I1Î1',
Ht;publiqul' socialiste sovi0tiqul' dl' nit:'lnrussil',
Costa-Hien, Cuba. Tchécoslovaquie, I~gyptl',

&lJvador, (~thiopie, Guatemala, Inde, IT3n, Irak.
Liban, Pakistan.

S'abstimnent: Paraguay, Pérou, Siam, Bolivie,
Chili, f:quatl'uf, Grl\cr, Haïti, Handllra~, Libéria,
Mexique, Panam3.

Par 26 l'oi.r contre 18. avec 12 abstentions le
para,qraphe .5 du projet de résolution dll UO!lallme
Uni tst rejeté.

Le PRÉSIDE!"T donne lt'cture du paragraphe 6
du projet dl' ré.;olutioll du Royaum,·-Uni.

890



Mr. EL-KHoURI (Syria) said that he would
abstain from voting, not because he did not
agree that the Holy Places should be safeguarded
but because he could not accept that any of them
should be entrusted to the custody of the Jews.
Recent events had shown that the protection
of the Boly Places ",oulel not be sufficif'ntIy
guaranteed if they remained under Jewish
authority. Mr. El-Khouri stated that for thirteen
centuries the Arabs had accorded the fuBest
protection to the Boly Places and had always
permitted free access to them.

Mr. ROMERO-SAENZ (Bolivia) said that he
would vote in favour of paragraphs 6 and 8
of the United Kingdom draft resolution becausc
his dclegation favoured the establishment of an
internaticnal regime for Jerm:alem and the
measures .-/hich were proposed for the protection
of the HotY Plncl's. However, he hoped that the
United Kingclom dl'll'gation would agree to
incorporah> the Colombian amendment to para
graph 7 in ils o'Wn text, because he thought
that it eontained several important ('lements
whieh wen' lacking in the United Kingdom
draft resolution.

Mr. AMMOUN (Lebanon) said that his delegation
was particularly concerned for the protection
of the Holy r->laces because they were sacred to
both the Christian and Moslem religions, which
were equaIly rl'presented in the Ll'banese popu
lation. The Lebanese people had been made
aware of the great danger which threatened the
city of Xazareth by the repoits which they had
received from the city's inhabitants, aIl 20,000
of WhOIll had sought refuge in Lebanon.

Howevei, '!'tfr. Ammoun found the United
Kingdom proposaI ..13dequate because it de':lIt
only with the city of Jerusalem !4nd did not take
into account the other importa nt Holy Places in
Palestine such as Nazareth and Bethlehem.
FurtlH'rmore, he did not think that it was wise
to include the provision for the protection of
the Holy Places in a general draft resolution,
the fate of which could not be certain. He
thought il would be more advisable to separate
the problt>m of safeguarrling the Iloly Places
from the political aspects of the Palestine question,
and to make it the suhject of a separate draft

. resolution. Consequently, the Lebanese rlele
gation would abstain from voting on paragraph 6
of the United Kingdom draft resolution.

Mr. SUAREZ (Chile) said that his delegation
woulrl support paragraphs 6, 7 and 8 of the
United Kingdom text as weIl as the amendments
to paragraph 7 submitted by Colombia. The
p'f1ple of Chile, who' \Vere mostIy of t.he Catholic
falth. laid great importance upon protecting
the Holy Places in Palestine and ensuring free
access to tl1l'm. However, :\Ir. Suarez thought
that the United Nations should not repeat the
error which had been made in the case of Trieste
by creating an internationaliud Jl'rusalem. It
would be tank'lmOunt to setting up a new State
within aState. Moreover, he considered that
the establishment of a permanent international
regime for the area meant that the United
Nations should restrict itself to directing the

M. EL-KnouRI (Syrie) s'abstiendra de voter, non
pas qu'il s'oppose à ce que les Lieux saints soient
protégés, mais parce qu'il ne peut accepter que
la garde en soit confiée aux Juifs. Les événements
récents ont montré que les Lieux saints seraient
insuffisamment protégés s'ils restaient sous le
contrôle des Juifs. ~1. EI-Khouri déclare que
pendant treize siècles, les Arabes ont assuré leur
entière protection aux Lieux saints et garanti
leur libre acc~s.

M. ROMERo-SAENZ (Bolivie) votera pour les
paragraphes 6 et 8 du projet de ré~olution du
Royaum~-Uni, car sa délégation est en favenr de
l'institution d'un régime intel'national pour
J érus2.iem, ainsi qUé des autres me~urES prOposées
en vue ~e la protection des Lieux saints. Il espère,
néanmoins, que la délégation du Royaume-Uni
voudra bien accepter que l'amendement de la
Colombie soit incorporé dans le paragraphe 7 du
projet de résolution; :\1. Romero Saenz estime, en
effet, que cet amendement contient plusieurs
points importants qui ne figurent pas dans le
projet de résolution du Royaume-Uni.

:\1. AMMOL'~ (Liban) déclare que sa délégation
se préoccupe particulièrement de la protection des
Lieux saints, car ceux-ci sont sacrés tant pour la
religion chrétil'nne que pour la religion musul
mane, qui sont également représentél's parmi la
population du Liban. Le peuple libanais s'est
rendu compte du grave danger qui menaçait la
ville de Nazareth d'après les renseignements
qu'elle a reçus dl'S hahitants de cette villl', dont le
nombre s'élève à 20.000, et qui ont tous cherché
asile au Lihan.

Toutpfois, M. Ammoun considère que la propo
sition du Royaume-Uni est incomplète car elle
ne concerne que la ville de Jérusalem, sans
tenir compte d'autres villes saintes importantes,
telles que Nazareth et Bethléem. En outre, il
estime qu'il n'est pas judicieux de prévoir des
dispositions en vue de la protection des Lieux
saints dans un projet de résolution de caractère
général, dont le sort est très incertain. Il y aurait
avantage à ce que la question de la protection
des Lieux saints soit dissociée d'avec les aspects
politiques du problème palestinien et qu'elle
fasse l'objet d'un projet de résolution indépendant.
Aussi la délégation du Liban s'abstiendra-t-elle
de voter sur le paragraphe 6 du projet de réso
lution du Royaume-Uni.

:\1. SUAREZ (Chili) déclare que sa délégation
appuiera les paragraphes 6, 7 et 8 de la résolution
du Royaume-Uni, ainsi que les amendements au
paragraphe 7 présentés par la Colombie. La
population du Chili, en grande majorité catholique,
considèrr> qu'il est très important de protéger les
Lieux saints de Palestine et d'assurer leur libre
accès. :\1. Suarez considère, néanmoins, que
l'Organisation dl's Nations Unies ne devrait pa~

répéter l'erreur de Trieste, en faisant de Jérusalem
une ville internationale. Cela équivaudrait à
former un État dans l'État. D'autre part, si l'on
institue un régime international permanent pour
cette région, il faudrait que l'Organisation des
Nations Unies se borne à assurer la direction de
l'administration de Jérusalem afin de protéger

891



administration of Jerusalem in order to preserve
it from danger nnd to maintain its ncutra

lchameler during the preSt'nt tense situation

Mr. Suurl'z hOPl'd that if Jerusnlem was to he
adrninistt'red by t IH' Unitt'd Nations, that tnsk
would Ill' placl'd undl'r tlw dirt'ction of t Iw
Trustct'ship Couneil in accordRuce with the
provisions of tht' Charh'r. It should not he
lmtrustt'(1 to tlw Sl'eurity Coundl as an afea of
strnlt'gk importanet', bt'causl' thai might n'suit
in making .lt'rusalt'm the ohjt'<'.t. of gnoat Power
polit Ït's :\tH1 111' cli(1 not won! to sn' the veto
invokt'<1 in administrativl' prohlellls.

FAW?I Bt'Y (Egypt) said t hat tllt' pnragraph
unda dis('ussion was om' of t hl' illost important
in tilt' Unih'l1 KÎllgl101ll drnft n'solution. The
Egyptian dl'll'gation would havi.' bt,t'n willing to
support it, had il not l'ont:lÏnt'(l l'll'llH'nts .of a
polit ical nat url'. TIH' illlp(lrtanct' whidl Hw
Arahs att:H'Ilt'd to safl'guarl1ing tht' lIoly Plan's
l'ouM not hl'ltt'r IH' (it'monstratl'd than hy tilt'
rad t ha t tllt'y ha(1 safl'gua rdl'(1 tlw sh ri nt'S of
ail t hTl'l' fait hs for lH'arly two t hous:md years

Fawzi B,'y fnUh(i a fllrt1Il'r objl'rtion to t ht'
Urlilt'(l King(lom proposai in th" rdl'fl'lH'e to
tilt' l'stahlishnlt'nt of a Iwrmallt'nt intl'rnat ional
rt'ginw. Ill' Tl'rallt'(1 t hat t hl' only provision
in tl1l' Chartl'r whirh ('oul,1 possihly IH' applil'(1
in t Ih' l'aSl' of Jt'rusalt'Ill was lIH' pro\'ision for
H truslt't'ship of Iimih'l1 durat ion. Nowht'n'
in lIw Charh'r \Vas lIll'rt, a ny au t horizatioll for
tlw l'stablishnwnt of a lwrmallt'nt inlt'rnational
Tl'glllll'.

Mr. Lw CHiEIi (Chin:4) askt'rl fOl a darifkatioll
of lllt' situation in Tl'Slwct of ,krusah'lll. lit,
rN'alll'rl that thl' ='Iovl'mlwr Tl'solution h:1I1
l..'ntrush'<1 tilt' Trustl'l'ship Coundl \Vith the task
of pr,'paring a draft statutl' for tilt' city. l'hl'
Truslt'l'sh ip (ouncil had l'xatnÎlwd t hl' prohll'Ill
in consultatioll with fl'l)J'l'sl'ntatiVl's of tlH'
Arab lIiglll'r Commit h'l' anlt of tilt' Provisional
Govannll'nt of bral'l an(1 had ('ompll'tl'd ils
dmft statuh' in April 1918. \\1lt'n thl' Sl'clirity
Council had Tl'qul'stl'd tilt' Assl'Illhly to pwl'L
in spl'cial srssion to rl'consitil'r lIw polit ieal
sellll'nll'nt, thl' Trush'l'ship Couneil hall intl'rruptl'd
ils work and tlw draCt statute had bel'n I\l'Id
in abeyancl'. l'hl' General Assembly ollght to
decidl' ~,\'hethl'r tlll' draft statutl' would bl'
ronsidrred, as had l)('en urgl'd by sonw Tl'pTl'Sl'n
tatives of the Truslt'l'ship Coundl who eonsiden'd
that the ~ovrmb('r rl'solution constituted an
immutabll' <lecision, or whethff it was to be
superseded by a new form of international
regime as the United Kingdom <lraCt Tl'solution
seemed to imply. ~Ir. Liu Chieh explained
that hl' personallY held no strong views on the
matter. but he thought that the Assembly
should give dl'finite guidance.

MT. PARODI (Fnmre) regreltcd that the First
Committee had not 3ltl)pted the proposaIs which
bis delegation had sl1bmitled during the second
special session for the protection of Jerusalem
and the Holy Places. If it had donc so, many
lives would have been savcd.

--~

la ville et de faire resIH'ctrr- sa neutralité dans la
situation troublée qui cxish~ act\wlll'ment.

M. Suart'Z l'st ime que si l'on dédcll' dl' faire
administrn .Térusa1t'm par l'Organisation des
Nations Unh's, il rOllvit'ndrait dt' c(Hlfi('r crUt'
tâche au Consl'il de tutl'1lt" c"H1forJllt~n1l'nt aux
dispositions dt' la Charh'. Il fmllirait évitt'r dt'
confil'r Jérusah'lll au Consl'ÎI dt' sécurité ('n tant
qlll' ZOIlt' strntégiqlll' importantt', l'ar dll' risqul'rait
dl' dt'vl'nir l't'njl'u dt' la politiqlll' dt's PUiSS:tlH'{'S ;
or, M. Suan'z Ill' voudrait pas qlll' 1(' vl'lo f:H
appliqué à propos (h~ qlH'stions administratives.

FAW7.1 Bey «.;gyph') eonsidl\rt, qUt' h' paragraphe
l'n cours d't'xan1l'n l'st un dl's plus importants du
projl't de résolution du Hoyallllll'-Uni. La délé
~ation dl' 1'I::gyplt' 'H1rait l'tl' disposl~l' :'l votl'r t'n
sa favt'ur. si ks ('l)llsilil~ratiolls d'orlin' polit i'lul'
l'n avait'Ilt d t~ ,'xdul's. Le fait qlll' h's AralH's on
prolt"gt~ (!l'puis (ln'sq"l' dt'UX lIlilll' ans ks
sanduain's dl's trois n'ligions t'st la nwilh-Uïl'
prt'UVl' dl' l'illlportalH'l' qul' Il's Arahl's attad1l'nl
Il la protl'rtion dt's Lil'UX saints.

Fawzi B('y voil (Ians la 1Il('ntioll qui a dé faill'
d'un n;giml' intt'rnat.iona1Iu'rmarll'nt Il Ill' ohjl'ction
dl' plus eontrl' la proposition du HoyalllJll'-Uni.
Il fait ohSl'rVl'r 'IUt' la Sl'ull' disposition dl' la
Charte qui st'rait appli('ahl,' au eas dt, .Jérusa1t'm
l'st <'l'Ill' qui prévoit l'institution d'lin n;gillll' dl'
tutl'1lt' h'mporain'. ;\I\('\IIU' disposition dl' la
Charlt' n'autorisl' l'institution d'un n"ginll' intl'f
national pl'rlllanl"lt.

M. Lnl CIIII-:I1 (Chine) dt'nmndl' (h's pn'cl"lOns
sur la qUl'stion dl' JérllsaIPIIl. Il raplH'lll' '1 Ill' la
fl~solut ion dl' novt'mhre a dwrgl~ h' Const'il dl'
tutelll' d'tqahon'r I:n projt'l dl' statllt pour la villt'.
Lt' Const'il a ét IIdié la qllt'st ion l'n consllltation
aVl'C dl's n'pfl~Sl'ntallts dll llallt Comité arahe el
dll ()OUVl'flll'lTll'nt provisoin' d' brai'!, d il 11

tl'rmiIH~ la n~dact ion du projet dl' stat lit l'n anil
HH8. Lorsqlll' h' Conseil dl' s6'IIrité a dl'Ilwnliè
la convocation d'UIl(' session t'xlraordinain' dl'
l'Assl'mblél' génl;ï:lh' t'n vue d't'xaminn à nouveau
la qlll'stion du rl'gleml'l1L poliliqllt', le Consl'il dl'
tutl'lle a interrompll s('s travaux l'l laissl; h' projl't
de statut l'n suspl'ns. L'Assl'mhlét' gl~nér:lk

dl'vrait décider si ee projet dl' statut s('ra l'xaminè,
ainsi que l'ont instamml'nl n'commallllé ('('rtains
ITll'mbrl's du Conseil dl' tutelle, qui considèfl'nl
que la résolution dl' novemhre l'st unc dl'rision
irrévocabh' ou s'il doit être remplacé par un
régimt' intl'rnational d'un type différent, comme
le laisse SUpposl'r le projet de résolution du
Royaume-Uni. :\1. Liu-Chil'h n'a pas d'idél' bil'n
arrêtée en la matit're, mais il cstin1l' que
l'Assemblée générale devrait formuler des n'co11l
mandations précisl's sur la question.

~1. PARODI (France) regrette que la Première
Commission n'ait pas adopté les propositions
visant la protection de Jérusalem et des Lil'llX
saints, que sa délégation avait présentées au
cours de la deuxième session extraordinain'.
L'adoption de ces propositions aurait sauvé
beaucoup de vies humaines.

892



In r{'ply to the objl>ction of th(' Egyptian'
r('pn'sentativl' that the UnitNi ~{ingdom proposaI 1
was not suffidt'Ilily pn'{'ist', Mr. Parodi said
that OH' aim \Vas Ilot to gin' snch precise directiv('s 1
to Ol(' conciliation commission as would predet('r
mi Ill' ils work, hut merely to providl> a basic
dir{'('tivl' as to the mannl'r in which that work
should IH' organized. 'l'Ill' F'n'nch dell'gation
round tlH' paragraph suffiril'ntly precise and
wou1<l voh' in favour of ils adoption.

The m('cting rose at 1 p.n'.

TWO HUNDRED AND TWENTY
FIFTH MEETING

IIeld at .he Palais de Chaillô/, Pari~,

on Friday, 3 December 1948, at 3.30 p.rn.

Chairman: Mr. A. COSTA DU RELS (Bolivia).

94. Continuation of the discussion on the
progress report of the United Nations
Mediator on Palestine (A/648)

CONTINUATION OF THE r.ONSIDERATION OF THE
UNITED KINGDOM REVISED DRAFT RESOLU
TION (A/C.l /:394/Hl'V. 2) AND AM~NDMENTS

RELATING THEliETO.

Mr. SHERTOK (Provisional Government of
Israel) formally denicd the allegation made by
the Leham>se rq)resentative that 20,000 Arabs
from Na7arelh had th'd t,o till· Lebanon becaase of
tl1l'ir fear of Jewish atrocities. The Arab popula
tion of Nazareth in normal Urnes only amounted
tn 18,000. 'Vlwn the Jcws occnpied the town,
thl'n' were more than 12,000 Arabs. At the
prl'sent moment the town contained more than
22,000 Arabs. lll'r.ause a great many Arabs from
nl'ighbonring areas had taken rduge there from
the war bl'Ïng waged in th'..' surrounding country.
Thl' Governnwnt of Israel, handicapped as it was
hy crushing milil.ary expenditure, wis!led to do
cVl'rything possibll' to help the Arab inhabitants
including t hose of Nazareth.

Ali tht Ho!) Places in Nazareth were intact and
religious services were proceeding normally;
statel11ents to that eITect from the religious
ll>aders of the area wcr(' Uw b('st proof of that.
The repn>sentative of Israel repeatl'd that his
Gov('rnml>nt was in entire agreement with the
prinriple of international supervision of the Holy
Placl's in Palt>stine. Only the Old City of Jeru
sal{'l11 should come under such supervision and the
Jl'wish sector of the New City should become part
of the Jewish State.

Mr. STEPHEN (Haiti) was of the opinion that the
city of Jel'usalem should come under the adminis
tration of a United Nations body of an interna
tional character. For that reason, his delegation
would vote iu f'l\,our of paragraphs 6, 7 and 8 of
the United Kingdom resolution (A/C.1/394/
Rev.2) and the amendments moved by the
Colombian (A/C.1/412) and French (A/C.1/417)
delegations. It would also be prepared to support
the Polish amendment (A/C.l/409/Rev. 1) with
certain reservations.

En réponse au représentant de l'(~gypte qui
n>proche au nrojrt de résolution du Hoyaume
Uni d'l'tre trop vague, M. Parodi dédare que ce
projet n'a pas pour but dl' donn('f à ia commission
dl' conciliation des instructions précises qui
fixpraient ~a tâ<'l1l' par avancl', mais ~implem"nt

dl' formuh'r UIll' recomnwndation fondamentale,
quant ù la manièn' dont cette commission devra
procéder. La délégaLion dt' la France estime que
Cl' paragraphe l'st sufl1samment précis et voh'ra
en sa faveur.

La séanCl' est levée à 13 heures.

DEUX-CENT-VINGT-CINQUIÈME
SÉANCE

Tenue au Palais de Chr!Ïllot, Paris,
le vendredi 3 décembre 1948, à 15 h. 30.

Président: M. A. COSTA DU REL~ (Bolivie).

94. Suite de la discussion sur le rap
port intérimaire du Médiateur des
Nations Unies pour la Palestine
(A/Mf.)

SUITE DE L'EXAMEN DU PROJET REVISÉ DE
RÉSOLUTION DU ROYAUME-UNI (A/C.l/394/
REV.?) ET DES AMENDEMENTS S'Y RAPPORTANT

M. SHERTOK (Gouvernement provL,oire d'Israël)
réfute formellement l'allégation du représentant
du Liban suivant laquelle les 20.000 Arabes de
Nuzare~h se seraient enfuis au Liban par crainte
des atrocités exercées par les J uiis. En temps
normal, la population arabe de la ville de Nazareth
n'est que de 18.000. Lors de l'occupation de cette
ville par les Juifs, plus de 12.000 Arabes s'y
trouvaient. A l'heure actuelle, la ville contient plus
de 22.000 Arabes, du fait que de nombreux Arabes
des régions avoisinantes s'y sont réfugiés pOUf
échapper aux hostilités qui se déroulent dans ces
régions. Le GOllvernement d'Israël, quoique
écrasé par les dépenses militaires, est disposé à
aider, dans toute la mesure du possible, tous les
habitants arabes, y compris ceux de Nazareth..

Tous les Lieux saints de Nazareth sont iatacts
et les services religieux sont normaux. Des
dec1arations de chefs religieux locaux en sont le
meilleur témoignage. Le représentant d'Israël
réaffirme que son Gouvernement est en complet
accord sur le principe de la surveillance inter
nationale des Lieux saints en Palestine. En ce
qui concerne Jérusalem, ce régime ne devrait
s'appliquer qu'à la Ville vieille. Par contre, la
part:e juive de la Ville nouvelle devrait être
reliée à l'État juif.

M. STEPHEN (Haïti) est d'avis que la ville de
Jérusalem doit être administré~ par un organisme
international dépendant de l'Organisation des
Nations Unies. C'est pourquoi sa délégation
appuiera les paragraphes 6, 7 et 8 de la résolution
du Royaume-Uni (AfC.1f394fRev.2), ainsi que
les amendements de la Colombie (A/C.1/412) et
de la France (A/C.l/417). Elle serait prête
également à appuyer l'amendement polonais
(A/C.l/409/Rev.l), sous certaines réserves.

nno




